
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Licensing 
Committee

Councillor A Bardoe (Chairman)
Councillor J Burrell (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor I D Armitt Councillor M B Kelly
Councillor R M Currans Councillor P Kelly
Councillor P Cutler Councillor C S McLean
Councillor M J Davis Councillor B E Read
Councillor D A Hammock Councillor L J Reynolds
Councillor D E Hunnisett Councillor Mrs R L Shanks
Councillor J Jones

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Tuesday 27 November 2018

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

Managing Director
20 November 2018



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
AGENDA

Tuesday 27 November 2018

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meetings of the 

a) Licensing Committee held on 26 September 2018; and,

b) Licensing Sub - Committee held on 10 September 2018. 

(Pages 1 - 10)

4. Urgent Items 
The Chairman will announce whether there are any urgent items and 
their position on the agenda.

5. Draft Code of Good Practice: Promoting the Four Licensing 
Objectives. (Pages 11 - 48)





1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on Wednesday 26 
September 2018.

PRESENT: Councillor A Bardoe (Chairman)
Councillor J Burrell (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor I D Armitt 
Councillor Paul Cutler
Councillor M J Davis
Councillor D A Hammock
Councillor D E Hunnisett
Councillor P Kelly 
Councillor C S McLean
Councillor D J Reynolds
Councillor L J Reynolds

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Currans, Jones 
and Mrs Kelly.

The Committee noted the appointment of Councillor D L Reynolds as a 
substitute for Councillor Mrs Currans

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations received.

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 14 MARCH 2017 

The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held on 14 March 2017 were 
approved as a correct record of that meeting.

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE 
LICENSING SUB - COMMITTEE HELD ON 6 DECEMBER 2017, 21 MAY 
2018 AND 10 SEPTEMBER 2018. 

The Minutes of the Licensing Sub - Committee held on 6 December 2017 and 
21 May 2018 were approved as correct records of those meetings.

It was noted that the Minutes of the Licensing Sub Committee held on 10 
September 2018 had not been available for the Committee to consider.

5. URGENT ITEMS 

It was reported that there were no urgent matters, nor any issues referred for 
the Committee to consider 



LICENSING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 26 SEPTEMBER 2018

2

6. DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY: CONSULTATION 

Members received a report inviting a formal response to a draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy to come into effect in 2019 to replace the current Policy 
which was adopted on 7 January 2014.  The new Policy will run until 2022.

The Draft Policy was considered at the meeting of the Cabinet on 26 July 
2018 (Minute 36 Refers) where it was resolved that the Licensing Committee 
be requested to submit a formal response – along with comments that may be 
submitted by other councillors, members of the public and from the affected 
license holders and trade organisations.

Once adopted the Policy will guide and inform applicants, responsible 
authorities and other persons about the process and reasoning behind 
decisions taken on licensing issues.

Members expressed considerable concern that the draft Policy did not reflect 
the Council’s visions and aspirations for the future of Dartford, and that if 
adopted in its current format could lead to a deterioration in the character of 
Dartford town centre, outlying shopping areas and the rural villages of the 
Borough.

It was agreed however that such aspirations and ambitions may not suitably 
placed within the Policy without leading to legal challenge.

Accordingly, Members considered possible additions to the Policy with a view 
to creating an ambition for the future of the Borough, which would inform and 
signpost future applications toward the council’s preferred licensing ideals. 

 This could be achieved by the formulation of a number of “Informatives” 
designed to sit alongside the Policy Document.

It was recognised however that further consideration of this matter was 
necessary and it was therefore 

RESOLVED

1. To make no comment on the proposed draft Policy Statement other 
than to recommend the addition of an Appendix or mission statement 
setting out the aspirations of the Council for the future of the Borough

2. That a draft version of the Appendix / Mission Statement be prepared 
for consideration encompassing Member suggestions 

3. To convene a further meeting of the Licensing Committee in late 
November to finalise the content and wording of this Appendix .



LICENSING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 26 SEPTEMBER 2018

3

7. DRAFT STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY CONSULTATION 

Members received a report inviting a formal response to a draft Statement of 
Gambling Policy to come into effect in 2019 to replace the current Policy 
which was adopted on 3 January 2016.  

The Draft Policy was considered at the meeting of the Cabinet on 26 July 
2018 (Minute 37 Refers) where it was resolved that the Licensing Committee 
be requested to submit a formal response as part of the statutory public 
consultation exercise.

Once adopted the Policy will guide and inform applicants, responsible 
authorities and other persons about the process and reasoning behind 
decisions taken on licensing issues.

Having considered the draft Policy and noted that the legislation concerned 
was particularly prescriptive the Committee 

RESOLVED

Gambling establishments be requested to operate with doors closed and overt 
advertising removed in order to make gambling establishments less attractive 
to children.   

8. REVIEW OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
KNOWLEDGE TEST 

A report was presented which reviewed the operation of the current Private 
Hire and Hackney Carriage drivers’ “Knowledge Test” in the light of the 
reduced numbers of applicants who are succeeding in the test and requests 
from Taxi operators to change its format.

The report identified a significant drop in the pass rate for drivers sitting the 
new test over previous years.

It was reported that in April 2016, the Knowledge Test was changed from a 
written test to a computer-based test, to streamline the process and to make it 
more cost effective and efficient for prospective drivers.  

Additionally it was noted that the old style test was held every three months 
and the new computer-based test allowed sittings every four weeks, thus 
making the process quicker for applicants

Members were also informed that taxi operating companies have claimed that 
many drivers who do not succeed in the current process, are obtaining 
licences from neighbouring authorities, which do not have our stringent 
requirements, and are still operating within Dartford. 



LICENSING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 26 SEPTEMBER 2018

4

The Licensing Manager informed Members that the testing of routes was 
originally removed from the Knowledge Test information pack but that it was 
proposed to reintroduce this to ensure a better knowledge of the Borough.

Having expressed some concern that a reduction in the pass mark for the 
Test could result in a reduction the quality of candidates the Committee  

RESOLVED

(a) that Council continues the use of computer based test;

(b) routes be reintroduced in the Knowledge Test information pack;

(c) that the pass mark for the knowledge test be lowered by 2 points - 
22/30 for Private Hire and 29/35 for Hackney Carriage.

9. TAXI DRIVER ACCREDITATION AND AWARENESS DAY: 
PRESENTATION 

Members received a presentation from Mrs Philpott on the new training day 
for taxi drivers.

The training, given in conjunction with the Kent Fire Service, covered the 
following topics: 

Prevent.  Considering the legislation and definitions of radicalisation, 
extremism and terrorism, understanding the factors that can lead to these and 
knowing what to do if there is concern relating to a passenger or colleague.

Safeguarding.  Looking at the definitions, indicators and duties relating to 
reporting child sexual exploitation.

Policy and Legislation.  Understanding the Law and Council Policy relating 
to taxi drivers.

Road Safety Training.  Considering issues relating to the causes of road 
accidents, the effects that they have on people ad vehicles, and 
understanding what to do if a road accident is witnessed or encountered. 

Members expressed their appreciation to Mrs Philpott for her hard work on 
this training day and noted that currently Dartford is the only Local Authority 
which undertakes such work.

Additionally Members were informed that a further training day had been 
organised on 25 October 2018 and that Councillors were more than welcome 
to attend.

The Committee agreed to note the information provided on the training 
programme.



LICENSING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 26 SEPTEMBER 2018

5

10. DELEGATED ACTION UNDER STANDING ORDER 38 : CONSULTATION 
ON CHANGES TO GAMING MACHINES AND SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITIES: JANUARY 2018 

Members received, for information, a report on a decision taken by the 
Strategic Director (External Services) in conjunction with the Chairman 
relating to a response to a government consultation on changes proposed to 
gaming machine legislation.  

The meeting closed at 8.30 pm

Councillor A Bardoe
CHAIRMAN





1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on Monday 10 
September 2018 at 2.00 pm

PRESENT
Councillor Bardoe
Councillor Burrell
Councillor Mrs Currens

Also Present
Mr C Alden (Environmental Health Partnership), Ms S Cotton (Solicitor) Mr M 
De’ath (Property Operations Manager Blueco) Mr N Murphy (Democratic 
Services Officer) Ms J Philpott (Licensing Manager) Councillor McLean. 

7. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

Councillor Bardoe was proposed, seconded and duly elected Chairman of the 
meeting.

8. FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE AND ARRANGEMENTS AND 
CONSTRAINTS RELATING TO THE FILMING OR RECORDING OF THE 
MEETING 

The Clerk to the Sub Committee explained the fire evacuation procedure and 
the arrangements and constraints relating to filming or recording the meeting.

9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

There were no apologies for absence.

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interests made.

11. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS HELD ON 6 DECEMBER 2017 AND 21 MAY 2018 

The Minutes of the Licensing Sub - Committees held on 6 December 2017 
and 21 May 2018 were confirmed as correct records of those meetings.

12. URGENT ITEMS 

It was reported that there were no urgent items for the Sub - Committee to 
consider.

13. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

The Chairman introduced the Members present and called upon others 
present to identify themselves.  He then explained that the Sub-Committee 
intended to follow the procedure detailed in the Licensing Sub-Committee 
Rules of Procedure, which had been circulated as item 6 to the agenda.



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

MONDAY 10 SEPTEMBER 2018

2

14. APPLICATION BY BLUECO LTD FOR A VARIATION TO THE PREMISES 
LICENCE HELD BY BLUEWATER SHOPPING CENTRE IN GREENHITHE 
KENT DA9 9ST 

The Licensing Manager introduced her report on an application received from 
Blueco to vary the current Premises Licence which was held relating to the 
Bluewater shopping complex in Greenhithe, Kent.

She explained that the licence, issued under Section 34 of the Licensing Act 
2003 included the undermentioned areas:

 Open air car parks / top of multi-storey location;
 Designated trade area within the upper/lower mall concourse; 
 Winter Garden;
 Marquee at the West Village; and,
 Ice Rink

The licence also set out permitted licensable activities and trading hours. 

It was noted that following consultation and mediation with the Kent Police 
Service and the Council’s Environmental Health Partnership, a number of 
additional conditions had been agreed by the Applicant, but that it had not 
been possible to obtain a consensus on permitted noise levels and certain 
operating hours, due to time constraints imposed by the licensing legislation.

Accordingly it had been necessary to convene a Licensing Sub – Committee 
to resolve the issue.

Mr Mark De’ath, Property Operations Manager for Blueco, explained that the 
purpose of the application was to regularise and update what was a rather 
dated document, and that he was committed to work with Licensing Officers to 
seek a satisfactory outcome for all concerned.  

He reported that he had already addressed a number of concerns raised by 
the introduction of additional conditions, and that the failure to agree 
conditions relating to permitted noise levels and operating hours was 
unfortunate, but that he was still willing to discuss these with Officers and the 
Sub Committee to reach a mutually satisfactory outcome.
   
He explained that while the Council’s Environmental Health Partnership had 
raised the matter of noise nuisance in its objection to the Application, he was 
unaware of any complaints and asked if details could be provided.  

He also expressed concern at proposed conditions relating to the 
measurement of noise, suggesting that it would be extremely difficult to take 
noise level readings inside a private residence, as he believed was being 
suggested.



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

MONDAY 10 SEPTEMBER 2018

3

In response to Mr De’ath’s points, Mr Colin Alden, Environmental Health 
Officer, explained that there were two issues relating to the application which 
were of concern.

The first related to hours of operation that had been requested for the 
Marquee area, as it was felt that 1.00am was too late in the evening, and the 
second related to the measurement of levels of permitted noise, and the 
difficulties that the measurement of these would present.

Mr Alden explained the technical parameters relating to the effective 
measurement of noise and how a condition would need to be framed to be 
enforceable in relation to the application.

In closing his points Mr Alden stressed that he had explained the objections of 
the Council’s Environmental Health Partnership to the application, being the 
issues of noise and operating hours and that apart from those matter the 
application was quite acceptable.

Mr De’ath reiterated his early assertions that he was quite happy to work with 
Officers over the objections raised by the Council’s Environmental Health 
Partnership and that he had no wish to cause conflict over the conditions of 
the Licence.

At the conclusion of the closing submissions the Clerk and the Members 
withdrew from the meeting room to consider the matter in private.

On resumption of the proceedings in open session the Chairman stressed that 
the Sub - Committee had considered the representations from both parties 
and the matters raised by the Licensing Manager.

Accordingly on the basis that the decision was appropriate to meet the aims of 
the licensing objective of the prevention of public nuisance it was 

RESOLVED

That the application to vary the current Premises Licence under Section 34 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 in relation to the premises of the Bluewater Shopping 
Centre be granted as follows

Sunday to Saturday 09:00 – 23:00 all areas except West Village Marquee
Sunday to Saturday 09:00 – Midnight - West Village Marquee

The following amendments and new conditions:

The removal of references to Lake 6 from the Conditions.

The amendment of hours stated on the Conditions to reflect the new 
hours applied for.



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

MONDAY 10 SEPTEMBER 2018

4

Prior to commencement of use of the events marquee for evening 
parties/corporate functions, noise monitoring shall be undertaken and a 
noise control scheme shall be proposed, submitted to and approved by 
Environmental Health.  Noise monitoring shall be undertaken to determine 
the noise limits for the marquee, during the aforementioned period of use, 
which shall ensure that the external noise environment at the curtilage of 
the nearest residential property does not exceed 50dB with an LAeq of 
(15 Minutes). 

Noise limits must also ensure that low frequency noise is controlled to the 
satisfaction of the Local Authority.  A telephone number shall be available 
to members of the public to ensure that they can contact a nominated 
representative during events.  Any complaints received must be recorded, 
responded to and the resultant action taken in response to the issue 
should also be recorded.

In addition the inclusion of the following conditions proposed and agreed 
during consultation with Kent Police, to promote the licensing objectives:

“that Kent Police licensing Officers to be notified in writing of any 
organised Licensable events held in the Car Park Areas (included ticketed 
events) excluding “The Beach”, “Christmas light switch on” or “Christmas 
markets” no later than 31 days prior to the event taking place.” 

The meeting closed at 3.25 pm

 
CHAIRMAN

(a) FIELD
(b) FIELD_TITLE 



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
27 NOVEMBER 2018

DRAFT CODE OF GOOD PRACTICE ON PROMOTING THE FOUR 
LICENSING OBJECTIVES 

1. Summary

1.1 To consult the Committee on the draft Code of Good Practice on Promoting 
the Four licensing Objectives.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee considers the draft Code of Good Practice on Promoting 
the Four Licensing Objectives, at Appendix A to the report and that the draft 
Code be recommended to the General Assembly of the Council for 
endorsement. 

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. At the Licensing Committee meeting on the 26 September 2018 
[Min.No.6], the Committee resolved that, going forward, the Licensing 
Policy be supported by an additional document to reflect the aspirations 
and visions of the Council as Licensing Authority.

3.3 The Committee is invited to consider the draft Code of Good Practice on 
Promoting the Four Licensing Objectives at Appendix A to the report and 
to recommend its endorsement by the General Assembly of the Council.

3. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

STRATEGIC AIM:  TO CREATE A SAFER BOROUGH IN WHICH TO LIVE, 
WORK AND SOCIALISE 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: SC 1: Use the Council’s statutory functions to 
increase public safety in the Borough. 

4. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications The statutory framework for the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy is provided by the 
Licensing Act 2003 and Secretary of State 
Guidance 

Staffing Implications None

Administrative Implications None 



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
27 NOVEMBER 2018

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix A - Draft Code of Good Practice on Promoting the Four licensing 
Objectives

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Licensing Act 2003, Guidance issued 
under s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
City of London – Code of Good Conduct

Joanne Philpott - Senior 
Licensing Officer
(01322) 343024

Licensing - 
Strategic.

N/A



Code of Good Practice
for

Licensed Premises

January 2019



Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) focuses on the promotion of four statutory licensing 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken. The four 
licensing objectives are:

∑ The prevention of crime and disorder
∑ Public safety
∑ The prevention of public nuisance
∑ The protection of children from harm

Aim of this code

The aim of this code is to provide applicants and licensees with guidance on good 
practice for the promotion of the four licensing objectives which are paramount 
considerations at all times. This code is consistent with the Home Office guidance issued 
under section 182 of the Act and with  Dartford Borough Council’s (the Licensing 
Authority’s) Statement of Licensing Policy.

This code outlines what Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities1 expect in 
practical terms from applicants when completing their operating schedules and from 
licensees when operating their premises under the terms of a premises licence.

Applicants and licensees are expected to make a proactive commitment to preventing 
problems from occurring at licensed premises through the adoption of this code.

Risks associated with licensed premises

Risks associated with licensed premises can vary dependent on the premises type and 
characteristics, the design, layout and general environment, the location, the policies in 
place and the events being held there.

This code identifies many of the possible risks associated with the sale of alcohol and 
the provision of entertainment or late night refreshment and sets out good practice 
measures to mitigate those risks. It provides a key mechanism for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives, for well-run premises and a responsible approach to the provision 
of alcohol, entertainment and late night refreshment in the Borough of Dartford.

It is recognised that not every risk will be relevant to every premises and it is unlikely 
that any one premises will need to address all of the measures. Indeed some premises 
may only need to introduce one or two measures.

This code cannot anticipate every possible risk, problem or circumstance that may arise 
from licensed premises. Neither does this code restrict an applicant or licencee from 
promoting the licensing objectives through alternative means.

1 Responsible Authorities (as listed in the Statement of Licensing Policy) are public bodies that must be notified of new licence 
applications, reviews and other licensing functions. They are entitled to make relevant representations to the Licensing Authority in 
relation to the application or the grant, variation or review of such a licence.



2



How will this code be used?

Applicants and licensees

A proactive and preventative approach is a key aspect of good management at licensed 
premises. The Licensing Authority therefore expects applicants to have regard to this 
code when completing their operating schedule.

If problems occur at licensed premises after a licence has been granted and a reactive 
approach is needed, licensees should put additional operational measures in place to 
manage and prevent those problems from recurring. The Licensing Authority expects 
licensees to have regard to this code when considering additional operational measures.

The Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities

This code is not a statutory document but it will be taken into consideration by the 
Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities as follows:

∑ when offering advice to applicants either at the design and planning stage or during 
pre-application discussions;

∑ when responding to licence applications where the licensing objectives have not been 
adequately addressed in the operating schedule;

∑ as a first point of dealing with licensed premises encountering problems, to raise 
standards to promote the licensing objectives in those premises and avoid further 
problems; and

∑ for the review of licences where there is evidence that licensees have not promoted the 
licensing objectives.

Dealing with problem premises

The routine monitoring of licensed premises may be undertaken by the Licensing 
Authority and one or more of the Responsible Authorities. The results of the monitoring 
will be shared between the Licensing Authority and the Responsible Authorities.

Problems or concerns with licensed premises will be identified and flagged up at an early 
stage and advice will be offered to licensees with a view to improving standards at their 
premises and to prevent or minimise subsequent problems.

Where problems have been identified, the Licensing Authority and Responsible 
Authorities will agree appropriate measures from is code with the licence holder to be 
implemented at the premises. The aim of is code is to avoid the need for enforcement 
action such as prosecution or review but it will not replace enforcement action where it 
is necessary.

3



General – all four licensing objectives

This section provides guidance on good practice for the general promotion of all four 
licensing objectives at licensed premises. It is intended to help those applying for new 
licences or variations to existing licences in completing their operating schedules. It is 
also designed to guide licensees on the general promotion of the licensing objectives 
after a licence has been granted.

Licensees and their staff have responsibility for the effective and safe management of 
their premises and the promotion of the four licensing objectives. Training is the key to 
giving licence holders, premises managers and staff the knowledge and skills to deal 
with and manage risks associated with licensed premises. Training should be provided 
to all staff and should be about both preventing and managing problems occurring at 
premises. Training should be regularly updated.

Risk Good practice measure

Lack of knowledge G1 (a) Well trained staff will contribute to well run premises
or understanding of and a responsible approach to the sale of alcohol,
the Licensing Act
2003

Licence  level  or  to  another  appropriate  standard
recognised by bodies such as the British Institute of
Innkeepers (BII) would be preferential.

(b) All staff should be advised of licensing law in writing
before they are allowed to serve alcohol.

specific  policies  relevant  to  the  operation  of  the
business.

inspection by the police or Licensing Authority.

4



Prevention of crime and disorder

This section provides guidance on good practice for the prevention of crime and disorder 
from licensed premises. It is intended to help those applying for new licences or variations 
to existing licences in completing their operating schedules. It is also designed to guide 
licensees on the prevention and management of crime and disorder from their premises 
after a licence has been granted.

The main causes of crime and disorder in licensed premises arise from inadequate 
security provisions, poor design and layout, the type of event being promoted, 
overcrowding and customers being drunk or under the influence of drugs. This can result 
in theft, conflict, violence and anti-social behaviour. It is therefore recommended that 
applicants and licensees take a proactive approach to preventing and managing crime 
and disorder from their premises.

All applications for new licences and variations should address the steps proposed to 
prevent crime and disorder and this is best achieved through a premises risk 
assessment. Alcohol can be a significant contributory factor to levels of crime and 
disorder in an area. Good management and good practice along with adequate physical 
controls can make an important difference to the level of alcohol related crime at 
premises. Such measures should be reflected in the operating schedule.

For new premises or the refurbishment of existing premises, preventative measures 
should be factored in during the planning and design stage. Consideration should be 
given to the design and layout of the premises to minimise the potential for crime and 
disorder. Useful information can be found in documents such as ‘Secured by Design’.

Licence holders should have clear documented policies and procedures in place which 
identify all crime and disorder risks associated with their premises and the measures 
implemented to prevent, manage and respond to those risks.

Risk Good practice measure

Security in and CD1
around the premises

empty.

tampering.

(c) Any staff or private areas and cellars should be kept
locked and secured whilst the premises are open to the
public.

CD2 (a) CCTV should be installed inside and outside the
premises.  The cameras should cover all internal areas

the premises. The date and time settings on the system
must be correct.

5



Risk Good practice measure

Security in and
around the premises

agencies such as the police.

(c) Recordings should be kept for a minimum period of
31 days.

(d) Staff should be trained in the maintenance and
operation of such systems with a record kept of the date
and name of person trained.  Records should be made

authority.

(e) A trained member of staff should be on duty to
operate the system whenever the premises are open.

CD3
deterrence.  Care should be taken so that lighting does
not impact on neighbours.

CD4 (a) Security systems should be integrated so that the

manner.

notify the police if it is activated.

CD5 (a) Door staff and/or stewards should be employed at

the venue.

(b) Any person performing the role of a door supervisor

working.

(c) Door staff should be easily identifiable by wearing a
uniform, high visibility jackets or arm bands.

full SIA licence number, their name, contact details and
the time and date their duty commenced and concluded.

(e) Stewards and other staff at the premises should also

supervision of the door.

6



Risk Good practice measure
Security in and
around the premises CD6

customers
from threats, conflict or violence.

with a police crime prevention officer.

(c) All staff must be aware of a premises security policy
with a record kept of the date and name of person

inspection by the police or Licensing Authority.

(d) Premises should be searched inside and out for
suspect packages before, during and after opening
hours.  Staff should be trained to remain vigilant during

police.

CD7
every three months with minutes kept.

CD8 (a) Daily staff briefing and debriefing will enable

(b) Briefings can be informal but any problems identified
and remedial action taken should be recorded with
records kept in the main office.

Crime including CD9 (a) Promoted events may attract larger than usual
conflict, violence or
aggression in and aggressive followers, rival gangs or other crime and
around the premises disorder associated with them.

at least 14 days in advance of the
proposed event.

promoted event, this should be documented by the
licence holder and it is expected that a debrief form will
be provided to the Kent Police licensing team within 48 
hours of the event.

7



Risk Good practice measure

Crime including
conflict, violence or
aggression in and
around the premises

entertainment is likely to attract, but at the very least on
a ratio of 1 door supervisor per 50 customers.

least one female door supervisor should be used.

promotional material or website and clearly displayed at
the entrance to the premises.

premises if they do not meet your admissions standards
or they are known to be violent or aggressive.

(b) In such cases, an entry should be made in an
incident or log book

CD13 (a) A policy to manage capacity should be adopted to

aggressive through accidental jostling.

inside the premises.

head counts may be appropriate.

(d)  Consideration  should  be  given  to  deliberately
running below capacity to afford a comfort factor to your
patrons and avoid conflict, violence or aggression within
the premises.

expected to attract a greater than usual number of
patrons and in excess of 500 people, the premises
licence holder will be expected to notify the Kent

advance of the event.

8



Risk Good practice measure

Crime including
conflict, violence or considered to prevent glassware being used as an
aggression in and assault weapon, particularly during promoted events.
around the premises

(b) Drinking vessels made from plastic or polycarbonate
would be preferential particularly in outside areas.

include regular collection of glassware by staff and
prevention  of  glassware  being  removed  from  the
premises.

crime should be clearly documented in a policy.

with a police crime prevention officer.

Records should be made available for inspection by the
police or Licensing Authority.

CD16 (a) Staff training in conflict management should be
provided to give them the knowledge and confidence to

disorder at the premises.

(b) Training should also cover dealing with, logging and
reporting incidents if they occur.

inspection by the police or Licensing Authority.

CD17 Sharing of information with others in the industry.

membership of a local pub/club watch scheme (DTAC) 
will
makers and common problems in the area.

Drugs and weapons
being brought into carrying of weapons in the premises should be adopted
the premises with a clear “no search no entry” message.

(b) Posters can be displayed throughout the premises to
remind customers of zero tolerance policy.

9



Risk Good practice measure

Drugs and weapons CD19 (a)  Effective  search  policies  will  minimise  the
being brought into
the premises licensed premises and lead to drug and weapon seizure

if attempts are made.

(b) The use of search arches and wands may be
appropriate in some cases.

(c) Search policies should be formulated in consultation
with the Kent Police licensing team.

(d) Search policies must be advertised widely on tickets,
promotional leaflets and on websites and prominently in
the premises entrance and queuing area.

(e) Searches should always be carried out in public
areas and covered by CCTV.

Records should be made available for inspection by the
police or Licensing Authority.

CD20 Calling the police if customers are suspected of being

made aware of this requirement.

weapons found with a clear audit trail and a process for
surrendering them to the police.

that must be followed by staff should they find drugs or
weapons during a search including circumstances when

bags and safe storage of seized items in a lockable box;

items should be surrendered to the police.

discouraging drug selling or use.

events or on busy nights such as Friday and Saturday.

documented with date, time and finding recorded.

10



Risk Good practice measure

Drugs and weapons
being brought into the likelihood of drug misuse
the premises

inspection by the police or Licensing Authority.

Theft from premises
or lost property

premises about crime prevention and to warn customers

snatchers.

CD26 Property patrols, managed cloakrooms and  toilet

patrons or the premises.

avoided as they can encourage crime.

supervision and act as deterrents to thieves.

CD29 A lost and found policy should be in place in relation
should 

include procedures regarding the logging and

handed in to 
any police station.

reduce theft from the premises.  Alcohol is a key target 
for shop thieves so it is best not to place alcoholic

this 
allows thieves to ‘grab and run’.

covered by CCTV if possible.

CD31 Security tagging any items considered a specific target
for theft, particularly alcoholic drinks over a certain price 
level will deter thieves.

11



Risk Good practice measure

Disorder from CD32 Reduce the potential for excessive queue lines with
customers queuing a well managed and efficient door policy. Long queuing
to enter the times  can  cause  people  to  become  agitated  or
premises or when
leaving the premises quickly and effectively as possible.

CD33 (a) A customer dispersal policy can minimise the
potential  for  disorder  from  customers  leaving  the

levels.

(b) Sufficient staff should be available at the end of the

premises and maintain good order as customers leave.

CD34 (a) Staff training in preventing disorder should be
provided to give them the knowledge and confidence to
deal with difficult situations.

inspection by the police or Licensing Authority

Customers getting
drunk and dealing and not encourage excessive drinking.
with drunken
customers

promotions should be in place at the premises and
should  adhere  to  industry  codes  such  as  those

adherence  with  the  mandatory  licensing  condition
regarding irresponsible promotions.

of soft drinks

spot early signs of customers becoming drunk should be
provided to give them the knowledge and confidence to
deal with drunken patrons.

the  
Licensing  Act  2003  and  be  able  to  recognise

aggressive behaviour.

12



Risk Good practice measure

Customers getting
drunk and dealing
with drunken Any concerns should be reported back to a manager.
customers

CD37 A duty of care policy regarding persons suffering
adversely from the effects of drink should be in place at

every effort will be made by staff to prevent patrons from

staff must be briefed on the policy.

CD38 Drink-aware posters can be displayed in the premises
to remind customers of the unit content in alcoholic
drinks and the safe alcohol consumption limits.

Consumption of CD39 Restrict the sale of strong beer and cider above 5.5%
alcohol on the street ABV and the sale of single cans or bottles of beer and
and street drinkers cider. Such sales can contribute to anti social behaviour

and disorder through the consumption of alcohol on the
street and in open spaces by street drinkers or persons
who are already drunk.

Sale of alcohol
outside permitted alcohol in retail premises, which can be closed and
hours locked at the end of permitted hours.

13



Public Safety

This section provides guidance on good practice for the promotion of public safety at 
licensed premises. It is intended to help those applying for new licences or variations to 
existing licences in completing their operating schedules. It is also designed to guide 
licensees on the promotion and management of public safety at their premises after a 
licence has been granted.

The carrying on of licensable activities in particular the provision of alcohol and some 
types of entertainment can increase risks to the safety of the public (including 
performers) attending licensed premises. It is therefore recommended that applicants 
and licensees take a proactive approach to protecting and managing public safety at 
their premises.

All applications for new licences and variations should address the steps proposed to 
promote public safety and this is best achieved through a premises risk assessment.

For new premises or the refurbishment of existing premises, preventative measures 
should be factored in during the planning and design stage. Consideration should be 
given to the design and layout of the premises to achieve the highest possible standard 
of safety.

Licence holders should have clear documented policies and procedures in place which 
identify all public safety risks associated with their premises and measures implemented 
to prevent, manage and respond to those risks.

Risk Good practice measure

General safety of PS1
staff and customers safety should be carried out at the premises to identify

potential hazards posed to staff or customers and
setting  out  precautions  to  manage  the  hazards.
Templates can be found on the Health and Safety

regularly reviewed at least every 12 months.

assessment and precautionary measures therein.

(c) A copy of the risk assessment should be kept at the
premises and made available for inspection.

PS2
and maintained with sufficient in date stock.

PS3
held by at least one member of staff who should be on
duty at all times the premises licence is in use.

14



General safety of
staff and customers

person trained.

PS4
available to anyone requiring medical attention.

PS5 Temperature levels and humidity in venues should be
controlled for the comfort and safety of customers.  An
environment that is too hot or too cold can make

achieved through use of air conditioning systems or
natural ventilation in non-residential areas.

Overcrowding PS6 A  documented  capacity  should  be  set  for  the
premises overall and for individual rooms within the

assessment in consultation with the fire safety authority.

and available fire exits.

PS7

overcrowding.

ticket sales or head counts may be appropriate.

running below capacity to afford a comfort factor to your
patrons.

Accumulation and PS8 (a) A glass collection policy should include provisions
disposal of glasses / for regular collection of glassware by staff and the
drinking vessels

areas. Glassware should not be allowed to accumulate
or cause obstruction.

premises for any glasses or bottles.

(c) All staff must be made aware of the glass collection
policy and their responsibility for the task.

15



Accumulation and PS9  Spillages and broken glass should be cleaned up

disposal of glasses /
and 

unsafe.
drinking vessels

from public areas.

Accident or other
emergency incident emergency  incidents  should  be  in  place  at  the
on the premises premises.

contingency planning and evacuation procedures in the

when to contact emergency services.

be  well  defined  and  evacuation  plans  exercised
regularly.

(d) A copy of the fire risk assessment should be kept at

fire authority and Licensing Authority.

PS12 A fire detection system should be in place at the

system should be tested regularly with records kept and
made available for inspection.

be clearly visible, unobstructed and well maintained
including areas outside exits leading to a place of
ultimate safety such as the street.

day to ensure that exits are unlocked and unobstructed.

the checks.

PS15 (a) Staff training in fire safety and any premises

should include how to use fire extinguishers.

16



Accident or other
emergency incident person trained and made available for inspection.
on the premises

PS16 An accident book should be kept in order to record all
inspection.

Drug use or drink PS17 (a) A zero tolerance policy to the use of drugs in the
spiking premises should be adopted.

to 
remind customers of the zero tolerance policy.

PS18 Refusing entry to anyone who appears to be showing

an 
entry should be made in an incident log book.

adversely from the effects of drugs should be in place at

medical attention where 
necessary.

should be kept of the date and name of person trained.

various anti drink spiking products to customers.

process for this should be clearly set out in your duty of
care policy.

cooler and quieter than rest of venue.

Smoking on the PS22 Staff  should  be  aware  of  their  responsibilities
premises

compliance.

Safety of customers PS23 Discourage drink driving by promoting schemes such
when leaving the as Designated Driver, with notices clearly displayed
premises throughout the premises.

17



18

Safety of customers 
when leaving the 
premises

safe 
options for travelling home. Information should include 
access to licensed taxi cabs

options.

(b) Provide a free taxi phone service and a safe waiting
area for customers inside the premises.

PS25 (a) A ‘chill out’ period at the end of an evening can
allow a slow dispersal from the premises allowing door

clashes with groups from other venues.

chill out period can be effective in allowing customers to
sober up before leaving the premises.

considered towards the end of an evening to affect the
alertness of customers before they leave the premises.

under the direct control of the licence holder will provide
added safety for customers as they leave the premises.

residential areas.



Prevention of public nuisance

This section provides guidance on good practice for the prevention and management of 
public nuisance from licensed premises. It is intended to help those applying for new 
licences or variations to existing licences in completing their operating schedules. It is 
also designed to guide licensees on the prevention and management of noise and other 
public nuisance issues from their premises after a licence has been granted.

Excessive noise and nuisance from licensed premises is a major concern for persons 
living or working in the area. It is therefore recommended that applicants and licensees 
take a proactive approach to preventing and managing public nuisance from their 
premises.

All applications for new licences and variations should address the steps proposed to 
prevent public nuisance. Where entertainment or other potentially noisy activity is
planned, a noise assessment should be carried out. For some premises, the assessment 
will need to be carried out by a suitably qualified consultant.

For new premises or the refurbishment of existing premises, preventative measures 
should be factored in during the planning and design stage. Consideration should be 
given to the structure and layout of the premises and equipment both internally and 
externally, to ensure that the premises are fit for purpose. Sound attenuation measures 
can include wall linings, acoustic curtains and acoustic treatment to mechanical 
ventilation or air conditioning systems. Consideration should also be given to historical 
noise problems at the premises with measures put in place to prevent them from 
recurring.

Licence holders should have clear documented policies and procedures in place which 
identify all public nuisance risks associated with their premises and measures 
implemented to prevent, manage and respond to those risks. Licence holders should 
also engage with local residents and businesses on a regular basis to ensure that they 
are being good neighbours and dealing with problems as they arise.

Risk Good practice measure

Music, singing and
speech noise sets out sound attenuation measures to prevent or
breakout from the
premises the premises.

acoustic consultant’s assessment.

management.  A record should be kept of the date and
name  of  person  trained  and  made  available  for

health responsible authority.

19



Music, singing and (d)  DJs,  event  promoters  or  other  entertainment
speech noise
breakout from the advance of any performance.
premises

policy.

PN2 (a) Windows and doors should be kept closed whilst
the premises licence is in use to prevent noise breakout.
Ventilation should be provided by mechanical means.

(b) Windows should be sound insulated.

(c) Emergency exits should be sealed acoustic doors.

and exit to the premises.

(e) Doors should be fitted with self closing devices.

PN3
sealed at a level approved by an acoustic consultant.

(b) The sound limiting device should be used at all times
that relevant regulated entertainment is taking place,
including all externally promoted events.

have access to the sound limiting device.

PN4
stage and loud speakers away from doors and windows.

structure borne noise.

PN5

perimeter checks and listening tests by the licence

qualified consultant using sound measuring equipment.

(b) Noise monitoring should actively be carried out on a
regular basis and in particular when a new form of

complaint is made directly to the venue.

20



PN6 (a) A log book should be kept of any noise monitoring
Music, singing and 
speech noise

carried out, the findings and any remedial action taken. 
The log should indicate whether it was routine noise 
monitoring or the result of a complaint.

(b)  The  log  book  should  be  made  available  for

health responsible authority.

PN7
to local residents and businesses which they can use to
report noise disturbances to a responsible person at the
venue as and when they occur.  The phone line should
be available at all times the licence is in use.

Noise and nuisance PN8
from customers with a well-managed and efficient door policy.
arriving and leaving
the premises

should be directed away from residential properties.

especially later in the evening, to keep noise to a
minimum. Rowdy behaviour from people queuing to get

entry to anyone behaving in an anti-social way.

(e) Restrict admittance or re-admittance to the premises
after 11pm.

PN9

the premises.  A policy should clearly set out measures
to avoid a mass exit at the end of the evening.

(b) A gradual change in music style and reduction in
volume, for example quiet or mellow music towards the

help to reduce the potential for rowdy behaviour.

(c) Sufficient staff should be available at the end of the

premises and maintain good order as customers leave.

and quietly.

21



Noise and nuisance
from customers
arriving and leaving quietly and not to slam doors, rev engines, sound horns
the premises or play loud music.

(c) Make announcements at the end of an evening,
requesting patrons to leave the premises and area
quickly and quietly.

Noise and nuisance
from customers
using external areas noise to a minimum.
such as beer
gardens or
forecourts premises are in a residential area.

PN14 (a) Door supervisors or staff should regularly monitor

are not causing a disturbance to local residents.

(b) For private forecourts, a physical barrier such as a
rope should be used to mark the boundary of the area
outside the premises where customers are allowed.

one time after a certain time.

permitting them to take their drinks with them and
removing external furniture after a certain time.

(e)  Locate  smoking  areas  away  from  residential
premises.

(f) Do not permit customers to congregate on and block
the public highway to passers-by.

22



Noise from staff and
entertainment early hours on the morning when the business has
providers leaving
the premises

artists’ equipment.

Noise and PN16 Commercial  deliveries,  collections  and  storage/
disturbance caused disposal of waste, including beer deliveries, refuse
by deliveries, collections  and  storage  /  disposal  of  waste  and
collections and recyclables in external areas should be restricted to
waste disposal normal working hours between 8am and 6pm Monday to

Friday.

Litter and waste PN17 (a) Flyers should not be distributed outside the
around the premises premises by the licence holder or any staff employed by

the licence holder.

events at their premises do not distribute flyers outside
the premises.

PN18 (a) Procedures should be in place for the prompt

example flyers, cigarette butts or food wrappers.

(b) Regular patrols of the area outside the premises
should be undertaken by staff to clear any litter
attributable to the premises.

(c)  Use  wall  or floor  mounted  cigarette  bins  in
designated smoking areas for customers.

Disturbance from PN19 External lighting for the premises should be turned off
external lighting after the premises are closed to the public.

Noise or odours
from plant and local residents by way of noise, odours or vibration.
machinery Acoustic measures such as screening, enclosures, anti-

used if necessary.

23



Protection of children from harm

This section provides guidance on good practice for the protection of children from harm 
at licensed premises. It is intended to help those applying for new licences or variations 
to existing licences in completing their operating schedules. It is also designed to guide 
licensees on the protection and management of children from harm at their premises 
after a licence has been granted.

The carrying on of licensable activities in particular the provision of alcohol and some 
types of entertainment can increase risks of harm to children attending licensed 
premises. It is therefore recommended that applicants and licensees take a proactive 
approach to protecting and managing the well-being of children at their premises.

All applications for new licences and variations should address the steps proposed to 
protect children from harm and this is best achieved through a premises risk assessment.

Licence holders should have clear documented policies and procedures in place which 
identify all age restricted risks at their premises and measures implemented to prevent, 
manage and respond to those risks. The Information Handbook at the end of this code 
gives details and advice for applicants and licensees regarding safeguarding. 

Risk Good practice measure

Children accessing CH1 (a) A documented policy setting  out  measures  to
licensed premises

alcohol and the provision of regulated entertainment and

the premises.

trained on the policy.

CH2 (a) Restrict access to children depending  on  the
nature of the business and / or circumstances.

(b) The admission of children can be restricted up until a
specified time in the evening.

they are accompanied by an adult.

Underage sales of CH3
alcohol ‘Challenge 25’ scheme serves as a reminder to staff of

the need to be vigilant in preventing underage sales and
to customers that it is against the law for anyone under
18 to purchase alcohol.

24



Underage sales of (b) A  ‘Challenge  25’ scheme gives staff additional
alcohol (cont.) support and encouragement to ask for ID from any

person appearing to be under 25 years of age to prove
that they are over 18.

(c) Only accept photographic driving licences, passports

approved as means of ID. If you accept other forms of

photograph, date of birth and holographic mark.

age.

(e) Prominently advertise the scheme in your premises
so that customers are aware, in particular, display proof
of age signs at the point of sale.

CH4

person (proxy sales).

CH5 Adverts or promotions for alcohol should not appeal
to young persons.

CH6 (a) Keep a refusals book (or refusal button on EPOS –
Electronic Point of Sale) on the premises and ensure it

who cannot prove they are over the age of 18.

incident, a description of the customer, the name of the
staff member who refused the sale, and the reason the
sale was refused.

authorised Licensing Authority officers on request

(d) The book should be reviewed on a regular basis to
see if any patterns emerge.

CH7 (a) Staff training in the age related sections of the

check customers’ identification where necessary.

person trained.

25



Access to age CH8 (a) Adequate provisions for restricting children from
restricted films

premises.

(b) Staff should be trained to check ages at point of sale

Classifications (BBFC).

Access to age CH9
restricted gaming
machines and should be in full view of staff for monitoring.

Access to
entertainment of an
adult nature

taking place.

CH11 Adverts for entertainment of an adult nature should
not be displayed externally on the premises or in any

by young persons.

26



Useful Contacts

Dartford Borough Council Licensing Authority
Civic centre
Home Gardens
Dartford
Kent
DA1 1DR

Telephone: 01322 343024
Email: licensing@dartford.gov.uk

North Kent Police licensing 
Medway Police Station
Purser Way
Gillingham
Kent ME7 1NE

Email: licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk

Environmental Health
Civic Centre
Home Gardens
Dartford
Kent
DA1 1DR

Telephone: 01322 343434
Email: eh.support@dartford.gov.uk

Planning
Civic Centre
Home Gardens
Dartford
Kent
DA1 1DR

Telephone: 01322 343434
Email: planningadmin@dartford.gov.uk

Health and Safety Executive
http://www.hse.gov.uk

Institute of Acoustics
http://www.ioa.org.uk

Secured by Design
www.securedbydesign.com

27



Information sources used in the preparation of this guide:

Association of Licensed Multiple Retailers (ALMR)
(incorporating BEDA – Bar Entertainment and Dance Association)
http://www.almr.org.uk

Best Bar None
http://bbnuk.com

British Beer and Pub Association (BBPA)
(Licensed Property: Noise Control, Managing Safety in Bars, Clubs and 
Pubs) http://www.beerandpub.com

British Institute of Innkeeping (BII)
http://www.bii.org

Dartford Borough Council licensing
(Statement of Licensing Policy 2011)
http://www.dartford.gov.uk

North Kent police licensing
http://www.kent.police.uk

Department for Communities and local government (DCLG)
http://www.communities.gov.uk

Drinkaware
http://www.drinkaware.co.uk

Health and Safety Executive
http://www.hse.gov.uk

Home Office (alcohol and drugs)
(Home Office guidance issued under S182 of the Licensing Act 2003, Home Office 
practical guidance for preventing and dealing with alcohol related problems, 
Alcohol Strategy 2012)
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/drugs/

Institute of Acoustics
http://www.ioa.org.uk

London Drug Policy Forum
(Safer Nightlife, Drugs at the Door)
http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk

National Counter Terrorism Security Office 
(NaCTSO) (Security advice for bars, pubs and 
nightclubs) http://www.nactso.gov.uk

The Portman Group
http://www.portmangroup.org.uk

28



Information Handbook
for

Licensed Premises



Say Something if you See Something
This campaign aims to raise awareness within Dartford of the issues of Child Sexual 
Exploitation (CSE) and human trafficking. Tackling CSE is a Government priority and in 
Dartford we are looking to engage with all communities, including the business 
community, to help prevent children becoming victims of these crimes.

The ‘Say Something if you See Something’ campaign is being driven by Kent County 
council and is the proactive multi-agency response within Kent to tackle CSE in the 
County of Kent.

Child Sexual Exploitation involves:

Young people, both males and females, under the age of 18 who are 
encouraged/forced into a sexual relationship or situation by an adult. It often involves 
young people being offered something in return for performing sexual acts, for 
example:

Alcohol, Cigarettes, Mobile Phones, Gifts, Money, Drugs, Love/affection, Accommodation

Where does it happen?

Young people can be groomed and sexually exploited at a variety of premises and 
locations such as:

Parks, Shopping centres, Taxi ranks, Restaurants, Takeaways, Gyms, Leisure centres, 
Hotels, Hostels, Pubs/bars/clubs.

It is the responsibility of premises license holders and their managers to make sure that 
suitable control measures are in place at licensed venues for the protection of children 
from harm. This is a legal requirement under the Licensing Act 2003.

Human Trafficking/Modern Slavery

Modern slavery is organised crime and affects vulnerable men, women and 
children of all ages. The most common form of Modern Slavery is sexual 
exploitation. Victims are often forced into prostitution, escort work or 
pornography. Victims of modern slavery can be children of any age. Perpetrators 
deliberately target people, preying on their vulnerability. The Modern Slavery Act 
2015 sets out to specifically tackle slavery and human trafficking.



Act now!

Failure to comply with your legal obligations can lead to consequences such as:

� Financial and/or reputational damage
� Revocation of licence
� Prosecution

What is included in this pack?

� Signs to look out for
� Risk management and due diligence information

� Contacts
� Recording system template



Say Something if you See Something

How this information pack can support your business:

We want to support those in the licensed trade to protect children and 
young people – and their own business – from the risk of these crimes so 
that they can continue to provide safe and reputable venues.

As part of this support, the Safeguarding Children Board, has
developed this resource pack. It is based on a national campaign, 
which has the endorsement of The Children’s Society/National 
Working Group for the Prevention of Child Sexual Exploitation.

There are a number of criminal offences associated with child sexual 
exploitation and human trafficking resulting in damaging consequences 
including a possibility of prosecution, action being taken against a 
premises licence and reputational/financial damage. By working together 
we can play a positive role in protecting children and local business from 
this activity.



Signs to look out for

Licensed premises are places where people usually go to socialise, have a drink, 
relax and enjoy themselves and as such they provide an ideal environment for 
the grooming and sexual exploitation of children and young people. As part of 
the grooming process adults may meet young people or take them to licensed 
premises, to develop a relationship of trust and make them feel special by 
giving them ‘treats’ such as meals or alcohol, or by involving them in adult 
parties. A premise could be misused for this kind of activity by the people who 
are socialising or working there.

For example:

• Adult venues (such as night clubs/sexual entertainment venues) may attract 
groomers if the premise is frequented by children or young people.

• Where underage drinking takes place, children and young people are at risk as 
their judgement is impaired.

• Premises providing goods or services that can be offered to children as gifts in 
exchange for sexual favours (for example, free food, drinks or cigarettes; free 
transport; free access to a venue in exchange for sexual favours) present risk if 
a groomer is employed there (or works voluntarily) and has regular or private 
contact with children.

• Children and young people are vulnerable in areas of premises that are not 
supervised or security checked (for example toilets, beer gardens, play zones).

• Risk may be present at premises where information technology equipment is 
used (for example, internet access, mobile phones) as social media can be used 
to groom vulnerable young people; cameras may be used to record or distribute 
indecent images of children.

• Premises providing facilities for private parties, private dancing/entertainment 
booths or overnight accommodation, may be vulnerable to the risk of child 
sexual exploitation.



Risk Management and due diligence

Under the Licensing Act 2003, the ‘due diligence’ defence can be used to protect 
your business, if you can demonstrate that all reasonable steps have been taken 
to manage risk. Here are some suggested safeguarding measures to help 
evidence ‘due diligence’ and keep children safe:

• Undertake a written children and young people’s risk assessment and use it 
to inform your operating policy and staff training.

• Staff should be trained to recognise indicators of child sexual exploitation 
and know how to report concerns.

• Staff should be trained to operate an age verification scheme, know what types 
of identification are acceptable and to recognise signs of proxy purchase of 
alcohol.

• Staff training records should be maintained.

• Activity at the premises should be monitored (for example using CCTV or by 
regular patrols. Patrol records should be maintained.)

• Suspicious activity should be reported to the police (including details such as 
vehicle registration numbers, description of individuals) and should be 
recorded in your incident log.

• If you have a delivery service (for example hot food) enforce a Code of Conduct 
to promote good safeguarding when deliveries are made to unaccompanied 
children.

Remember

“SAY SOMETHING IF YOU SEE SOMETHING”,

Under the Licensing Act 2003 your premises licence may

be at risk if you do not take action to protect children.



Contacts

• If you have information to share please contact 
the Kent Safeguarding Children Board: 
http://www.kscb.org.uk/ 

• If a crime is in progress please call 999 

• If you need to speak with police about a matter 
which is not urgent please call the Kent Police 
non-emergency number 101 and quote CSE

•

Information required

� Dates & Times
� Names and contact numbers of people involved 

(if available)
� Descriptions of young person and adult
� Vehicles used
� Credit card details
� Who witnessed this :- you, colleague, member of 

the public
• Description of concerning activity


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of  Minutes of the Meeting of the a)  the Licensing Committee held on 26 September 2018; and,b) the Licensing sub Committee held on 10 September 2018.
	Sub minutes

	5 Draft Code of Good Practice On Promoting the Four Licensing Objectives.
	Code of Good Practice Report v2


